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Early Grants and Settlement
Sir Ferdinando Gorges

- 1622 land patent for Maine with 
Captain John Mason between 
Merrimack and Kennebec

- Plymouth Council for New England
- 1629 divided South of Piscataqua 

became Province of New Hampshire 
under Mason

- Died 1647, never came to New World



Early Grants and Settlement
Captain John Mason

- Founder of New Hampshire
- Grants seemed to give him shared 

control of some lands East of 
Piscataqua in present-day Eliot

- Walter Neal appointed his agent
- Died 1635, never came to New World



Early Grants and Settlement
Was Eliot “Settled” in 1623?

William Hilton

- Brother of Edward Hilton
- Came to Hilton Point (Dover) with his 

brother in 1623?
- Hilton settled Dover Point 1628?
- Some accounts say he chose to build 

across the river at Sandy Hill in Eliot 
where he used an old indian corn field 
to grow corn and had a house.

- Walter Neal drove him off and burned 
down his house in 1632

- Sued and won 20 years later



Early Grants and Settlement

“Laconia” Company Grants

- Captain Thomas Cammock receives 
grant in 1633 where William Hilton had 
his corn field and cabin. Sold this to 
Alexander Shapleigh’s agent Treworgy 
for his son Nicholas Shapleigh in 
1636.

-



Early Grants and Settlement
“Laconia” Company Grants

- Thomas Wannerton receives grant just 
south of Cammock’s in 1633

- Wannerton invited Nicholas Frost to 
come and be his neighbor and gave 
him land in 1634

- This Frost land and house became 
home of William Everett and 
eventually William Leighton.

- Wannerton sold off more of his grant to 
Nicholas Shapleigh.



Leighton land plan, 1811

On original Wannerton grant



Early Grants and Settlement
“Laconia” Company Grants

- Henry Joselyn received a grant next to 
Wannerton’s also in 1633

- Extended from Watts Fort to Franks 
Fort

- Joselyn’s grant became the Bay Lands
- Sold this grant about 1639 to the Rev. 

Hanserd Knollys of Dover.





Watts Fort
 Named for John Watts

- Also Darby, Jocelyn, 
Leighton

- Darby?  Darby Field?

- John Watts, merchant 
kept a trading post 
here.



Franks Fort
 Named for Francis Williams

- Overseer of 
experimental salt works 
for Laconia Company 
located along the shore 
between Franks Fort and 
Watts Fort.

- June 1631.

- Salt works were a failed 
venture.







Knowles Purchase
Reverend Hanserd Knollys (Knowles)

- Born 1598 ordained by Anglicans 1629.
- Resigned from Anglican Church 1636 

and escaped to America in 1638.
- Became Baptist Preacher in Dover.  

Caught up in “Antinomian Controversy”.
- Probably purchased Joselyn’s grant 

about 1639.
- Returned to England 1641 but sold his 

lands to the General Court of 
Massachusetts for 30 pounds.

- Not an Indian



William Hawthorne Grant
William Hawthorne

- Born 1606.  Became successful 
merchant in Salem, MA.  Ancestor of 
Nathaniel Hawthorne.

- Received the Knowles Purchase as a 
grant from the General Court of 
Massachusetts on Oct. 14, 1651.

- Part of the first delegation sent to Kittery 
to convince inhabitants to submit to 
Massachusetts in 1652.

- Sold Bay Lands to Capt. John Leverett of 
Boston Dec. 20, 1653 for 8 hogshead of 
salt and 10,000 feet of boards.



Leverett to Broughton to Clark
Land used as currency among Boston 
merchants 

- John Leverett sold the Bay Lands to 
Thomas Broughton in 1655 for “80 
pounds sterling in boards.” (Book 1 
Folio 98)

- Thomas Broughton sold it to Major 
Thomas Clark of Boston July 4, 1659.

- Thomas Clark dies in 1683 and his 
daughters, Mehitable Warren, 
Elizabeth Hutchinson took ownership 
of the Bay Lands for the next 16 years.



Survey of 1682
Peter Coffin requested survey in 1682

- John Evans conducted in presence 
of Kittery Selectmen, Capt. John 
Wincoll, Capt. Charles Frost, Lt. 
Joseph Hammond.

- Parcel measured at 870 acres.

- 240 rods wide by 580 rods long.



Squatters
Unimproved land invited squatters

- Dennis Downing lived on about 
30 acres of land where Frost 
Tufts Park is today.  His son 
Joshua inherited this land.

- Stackpole says all of the grantees 
of the 1699 purchase except 
Joseph Hammond were already 
living on this land, maybe Tobey 
who conducted shipbuilding at 
Mast Cove.



Hammond & Company 1699
York Deeds Book 6 Folio 88

- Dec. 18, 1699
- 300 pounds
- Joseph Hammond, Daniel Fogg, 

Matthew Libby, David Libby, 
Stephen Tobey.

- Joseph Hammond paid 100 
pounds so received wider lot.

- Joshua Downing already lived on 
30 acres along the river.

- Hammond 88 poles, rest 38 poles









Libbey Lane used as an access road between Matthew and David Libbey’s lots.



Town Office complex part of Stephen Tobey’s parcel.



Tobey divides this portion of his parcel almost immediately.  David Libbey divides a 12 Rod parcel 
adjacent to this parcel also to John Cotten in 1702.



David Libbey’s will of 1725 divides his parcel among his sons, David Jr., Samuel, Solomon, and 
Ephraham.



Matthew Libbey’s 1740 will divides his parcel between sons Matthew Jr. and Samuel.



Joseph Hammond’s will formally divided his parcel 1751 between sons Joseph, and George.



Close to the boundary of Joseph Hammond’s parcel.  Joshua Downing owned land to the right.



Dr. Willis Homestead - bought by John Fogg from a Mr. Dixon about 1775.  Brick bears year 1727.



William Fogg House (1821) and William Fogg Library (1907) on Fogg land.



Joseph Kennard House (1850)



Site of the Eliot Academy built 1839 burned 1875.  Land donated by Joseph Fogg.



Stonewall by town office marks original boundary between David Libbey & Stephen Tobey



George A. Hammond house was moved here from parcel off Bradstreet Lane in 1852.  Originally part of 
Stephen Tobey’s land, parcel sold to Jacob Smith, then John Cotton 1701.





Stephen Tobey parcel ends at the driveway into the Elementary School.






